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October 14, 2008 

To the Citizens of Black Hawk College: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Black Hawk College, Community College 
District No. 503, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, is hereby submitted.  Responsibility for 
both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including 
all disclosures, rests with the College.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed 
data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly 
the financial position and results of operations of the College.  All disclosures necessary to 
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the College’s financial activities in relation to its 
mission, vision, and goals have been included.  In addition, this letter of transmittal should be 
read in conjunction with the management’s discussion and analysis which immediately follows 
the independent auditor’s report and focuses on current activities, accounting changes and 
currently known facts. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections:  introductory, 
financial, statistical, and special reports.  The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, 
a list of principal officials and the College’s organizational chart.  The financial section includes 
the report of our independent public accountants, management’s discussion and analysis, the 
basic financial statements, notes to the financial statements and supplemental financial 
information.  The statistical section includes selected unaudited financial and demographic 
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.  The special reports section includes the 
Uniform Financial Statements, grants and enrollment audits required by the Illinois Community 
College Board (ICCB) together with the related auditor’s reports, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and the related notes together with the related auditor’s 
reports.

The College maintains its accounts and prepares its financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth by 
Governmental and Financial Accounting Standards Boards (GASB and FASB) and the Illinois 
Community College Board (ICCB).  The financial records of the District are maintained on the 
accrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses 
are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal obligation to pay.  The notes to the 
financial statements expand and explain the financial statements and the accounting principles 
applied.  The financial statements have been audited by our independent auditors, Lindgren, 
Callihan, VanOsdol & Co., Ltd.  Their report is included as part of this financial presentation. 
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Mission, Vision, and Goals 

The mission of Black Hawk College is to provide the environment and resources for individuals 
to become lifelong learners. 

The vision of the College is to position Black Hawk College as the preferred choice for 
education and training through total accessibility, quality instructional programs, student-
centered services, and strategic alliances.  The following goals have been established to aid in 
the process of accomplishing both the mission and vision of the College: 

 Provide the best atmosphere for successful academic student outcomes.
 Provide the best atmosphere for continued career learning.
 Provide the local and global community with continuing education and personal and 

professional development.
 Operate within the framework of our identified institutional core values: Appreciation of 

diversity, Caring and Compassion, Fairness, Honesty, Integrity, Respect, and 
Responsibility.

 Provide leadership in community and economic development through training, 
partnerships, and services. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

Black Hawk College was established in 1946 and was granted official accreditation by the North 
Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools in March of 1951.  Today, Community 
College District No. 503 is comprised of portions of nine Illinois counties which include: Rock 
Island, Henry, Mercer, Whiteside, Henderson, Knox, Bureau, Stark, and Marshall.   

Black Hawk operates two primary campuses as well as other instructional centers throughout 
the District and serves a population in excess of 230,000.  The College’s Quad-Cities Campus 
is located on 149 wooded acres in Moline, Illinois while the College’s East Campus is located on 
a 102-acre site outside of Kewanee, Illinois.   

The average Fall semester head count is 6,347 from fiscal year 2004 to fiscal year 2008.  The 
College continues to experience a decline in total credit hours, which includes both restricted 
and unrestricted credit hours.  The decline in total credit hours from fiscal year 2007 to fiscal 
year 2008 was 2.98%. 

According to the 2000 Census, nearly 50% of workers employed within the district are employed 
in manufacturing, retail trade, or educational, health and social services industries.  The 
District’s principal employers are presented in the statistical section of this report.  The Quad 
Cities area is considered a diverse business region and the long-term economic outlook for the 
region and the College is viewed as favorable. 
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Major Initiatives 

The 2007-2009 Strategic Plan focuses on three main strategic priorities: Connecting with the 
Learner, Connecting with the Community, and Connecting Internally.  The following objectives 
have been developed in order to accomplish these strategic priorities: 

 Student Success 
 Student Satisfaction 
 Student Access 
 Employment Opportunities 
 Partnership agreements 
 Workforce Development 
 Fiscal Planning 
 Recognition and Innovation of faculty and staff 
 Collaboration between faculty and staff 
 Communication  

In addition to these strategic objectives, the College has also undertaken several major 
operational initiatives.  These initiatives include: 

 Achieving re-accreditation in 2013 
 Increasing employee development opportunities 
 Developing an institutional facilities master plan 
 Balancing the budget 
 Refreshing and enhancing both the information technology and instructional facilities of 

the College 

The College also continues to review its course offerings and implement new programs that 
meet the above mentioned strategic priorities and better serve the District.  For example, the 
College has recently increased faculty levels in the Nursing department as we continue to see 
an increase in the need for these programs in the community and a strong demand from the 
student population.  Furthermore, the College recently implemented a new Engineering 
Technology program focused on emerging energy sources such as wind and geothermal.  
Finally, the College continues to develop and implement additional online courses each 
semester to help meet the demand for these courses as well. 

Local Economy 

Black Hawk College has three primary sources of Operating Funds revenue: Tuition and Fees, 
State Funding, and Property Taxes.   

Tuition and fee revenue account for approximately 40% of the overall revenue received.  The 
College continues to see declines in total credit hours, which includes restricted and unrestricted 
hours, for both Baccalaureate and ABE/Adult Secondary categories.  However, from fiscal year 
2007 to fiscal year 2008 the College experienced increases in total credit hours for the Business 
Occupational and Health Occupational categories.  These increases are expected to continue 
into future years as the demand for health professionals increases further. 

State funding continues to be problematic for the College as the level of state funding continues 
to decline.  It is anticipated that funding levels will continue to decline in future years as well.  
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The ICCB credit hour reimbursement rates have continually declined for three out of the six 
credit hour categories.  These declines have prompted to the College to raise tuition and fee 
rates as well as cut spending on certain programs. 

Property taxes are levied each year for all taxable real property in the District on the basis of the 
equalized assessed property values (EAV).  Assessed values are established by each of the 
nine respective counties within the district.  The subsequent property taxes are billed and 
collected by each county.  Property tax revenue continues to hold relatively stable as equalized 
assessed values in the District have been increasing steadily over the past several years.   

Financial Planning 

The College has taken several steps to offset the negative impact of inadequate state funding 
and declining enrollment.  These steps include: 

 Cost containment and reduction of departmental budgets 
 Greater focus on alternative sources of revenue 
 Tuition and fee increases 
 Review and redesign of key business processes and technology to improve efficiency 
 Completion of an organizational restructuring plan 
 Implementation of new programs to strengthen enrollment 
 More aggressive curriculum and outreach development 

In addition, the College has begun utilizing an annual Financial Plan, presented to the Board of 
Trustees each January, to ensure focus and attention is given to critical areas in a more efficient 
manner.  This financial planning process is coordinated with the budget preparation process.  
One outcome of the recent financial planning process was the implementation of a strategy for 
issuing funding bonds to fund technology and other capital needs every three years.  
Technology has continued to be an ongoing priority for the College and instructional 
departments proactively strive to improve and keep the College current with the ever changing 
infrastructure, instructional delivery systems, and training needs related to technology.  The 
College will also be using these bond proceeds to update instructional equipment and facilities 
throughout the District. 

Internal Controls 

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
controls to ensure compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.  
Internal controls are designed to limit the College’s exposure to risks, to safeguard the College’s 
assets from theft or misuse, and to provide adequate documentation for the preparation of the 
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as well as 
accounting standards mandated by the ICCB.  The internal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.  The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of the control should not exceed the expected 
benefits and estimates and judgments by management are required for the valuation of the 
costs and benefits. 
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Budgetary Controls 

The College maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied 
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the College’s Board of Trustees.  The legal level 
of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted 
amount) is established at the fund level.  The College maintains an encumbrance accounting 
system as one technique to accomplish budgetary control.  Encumbered amounts lapse at year-
end.

Cash Management Policies and Practice 

For the purpose of overall investment of excess funds, the College is governed by the Illinois 
Public Community College Act (Chapter 110, Act 805/3-47).  The fiduciary responsibility for said 
investments is entrusted to the College’s Board of Trustees, who has in turn delegated 
operational responsibility for that function to the treasurer of the College. 

In keeping with Board policy, all investments of excess funds are made in a prudent, 
conservative and secure manner in accordance with the guidelines detailed in Board Policy 
4.55, Investment of College Funds.  The Treasurer of the College, or designee, must review the 
cash balances on a daily basis to determine if funds are available for investment.  If funds are 
available, they will be invested according to the following procedure: 

1. The various forms of investment will be reviewed to determine the highest yield subject 
to the provisions of Board policy. 

2. The current portfolio will be evaluated for diversification needs and a decision made on 
the investment(s) to be purchased. 

3. If Certificates of Deposit or Time Deposits are to be used, the College will solicit 
telephone quotes from all interested in-district financial institutions and will invest such 
funds at the highest rate of return. 

4. The College will invest in instruments such as Money Market Accounts, Illinois Public 
Treasurer’s Investment Pool (IPTIP), and Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund 
(ISDLAF) to maintain an adequate degree of liquidity. 

5. Monthly investment schedules will be provided to the Board. 
6. The College will invest funds consistent with all procedures and restrictions included 

herein using the “prudent man rule” as a guiding principle as well. 
7. The Treasurer, or designee, shall have no real or perceived conflict of interest with any 

financial institution the College is currently using or may utilize in the future.  All 
placements of investments shall be done in an open, fair manner. 

Risk Management 

The College is self-insured for its health insurance claims.  The claims are administered by an 
external third party administrator.  In addition, the College maintains stop loss coverage of 
$125,000 specific and $5,388,897 aggregate with a major insurance carrier for medical and 
dental claims and stop loss coverage.  The College also maintains adequate reserves to cover 
potential losses and the reserves are reviewed regularly to determine if they are appropriate.   
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Introduction
This section of Black Hawk College’s (College) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the College’s financial activity during the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007.  Since this Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to 
focus on current activities, resulting change, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction 
with the College’s basic financial statements and the footnotes.  Responsibility for the completeness 
and fairness of this information rests with the College. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 
The basic financial statements focus on the College as a whole versus traditional presentation by fund 
types.  The College’s financial statements are designed to emulate corporate presentation models 
whereby all of the College’s activities are consolidated into one total. 

The purpose of the Statement of Net Assets is to present the bottom line results of the College.  This 
statement combines and consolidates current financial resources with capital assets.  It presents 
assets, liabilities and net assets at the end of the fiscal year.  The Statement of Net Assets requires 
the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories.  The difference 
between total assets and total liabilities is reflected in the net assets section which reflects net assets 
in three broad categories:  invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted.  
Net assets are one indicator of the current financial condition of the College, while the change in net 
assets is one indicator of whether the overall financial condition of the College has improved or 
deteriorated during the year. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets focuses on both the gross 
costs and the net costs of the College’s activities, which are supported mainly by local property taxes, 
tuition, and state revenues.  It presents the revenues, expenses and transfer activities that occurred 
during the fiscal year.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets requires 
the classification of revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating.  Property taxes and 
state funding are reported as non-operating revenues, for example.  

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the inflow and outflow of cash collected and disbursed by 
the College for the fiscal year.  It separates the sources and uses of funds by the major categories of 
operating, capital and related financing, non-capital financing and investing activities.  This statement 
emphasizes the College’s dependence on state and local sources by separating them from operating 
cash flows. 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Financial Highlights
For the year ended June 30, 2008, the College recorded total operating revenues of $12,246,218 and 
total operating expenses of $45,514,497.  The difference produced an operating loss of $33,268,279.  
Net non-operating revenue of $39,775,924 offsets this loss and results in an overall increase in net 
assets of $6,507,645. 

Non-operating revenue included local property taxes of $16,212,834, state grants and contracts of 
$14,154,600, federal grants and local contracts of $7,499,337, and other net miscellaneous revenue 
of $1,909,153. 

Operating revenue accounted for 23% of the College’s total revenue, while non-operating revenues 
accounted for the other 77% of the College’s total revenue.  Operating revenue consisted of tuition 
and fees, net of financial aid allowances, totaling $6,830,918, auxiliary enterprise revenues totaling 
$3,456,655, and other miscellaneous revenue of $1,958,645. The payment made by the state, on 
behalf of the College, to the State University Retirement System (SURS) was $1,954,642 of that total. 
The comparable contribution by the state to SURS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 was 
$1,486,613. 

Long-Term Debt 
The College issued $8,600,000 in general obligation bonds in the current fiscal year. The proceeds 
from this process will be used to increase the Working Cash fund balance as well as fund various 
capital improvement and technology refresh projects throughout the district. The unused legal debt 
capacity of the College is currently $77,475,786, which represents 2.875% of the assessed valuation 
of the College’s district less the $15,380,000 in outstanding debt.  See notes to the financial 
statements for further information on long-term debt. 

Economic Factors 
The College has continued to experience reductions in state funding the last several years and that 
trend is expected to continue.  The State of Illinois continues to experience serious difficulties in 
balancing its budget and further reductions to the College may continue.  

The national economy maintains slow growth and this will continue to be impacted by the increased 
deficits due to cost of the war on terror and the continued volatility with energy prices. 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Comparative Net Assets – Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Current Assets $40,765,048 $33,307,167 $  7,457,881    22.4%
Non-Current Assets 29,808,768 26,819,165   2,989,603       11.1 
Total Assets $70,573,816 $60,126,332 $10,447,484    17.4%

Current Liabilities $  7,226,431 $  7,701,728 $  (475,297) (6.2)%
Non-Current Liabilities 13,899,911 9,484,775   4,415,136      46.5 
Total Liabilities $21,126,342 $17,186,503 $ 3,939,839   22.9%

Net Assets 
    Investment in Capital Assets, net $18,504,208 $18,158,170 $    346,038     1.9%
    Restricted for: Expendable 18,116,477 12,698,405   5,418,072   42.7 
    Unrestricted 12,826,789 12,083,254   743,535      6.2 

Total Net Assets $49,447,474 $42,939,829 $ 6,507,645 15.2%

The College had net assets at the beginning of the year totaling $42,939,829.  The net increase in net 
assets of $6,507,645 brought the total of net assets at the end of the year to $49,447,474.

Notable changes in fiscal year 2008 include the significant increases in Current Assets and Non-
Current Liabilities as a result of the additional $8,600,000 in bonds issued this fiscal year.  
Additionally, Non-Current Assets increased significantly due primarily to the construction of the 
Community Education Center in Kewanee, Illinois. 

This schedule is prepared from the College’s Statement of Net Assets, which is presented on a full 
accrual basis of accounting whereby assets costing $2,500 or greater are capitalized and depreciated. 

Net Assets - Fiscal Year 2008

Restricted  
36.7%

(29.6% FY07)
  Net Capital Assets

37.4%
(42.3% FY07)

Unrestricted 25.9%
(28.1% FY07)
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Assets 
For the years ending June 30, 

2008 2007 
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Operating Revenue: 
    Tuition and Fees $   6,830,918 $   6,589,369 $   241,549    3.7% 
    Auxiliary 3,456,655 3,422,932   33,723 1.0 
    Other 1,958,645 1,553,566 405,079     26.1 
Total Operating Revenue $ 12,246,218 $ 11,565,867 $   680,351     5.9% 

Less: Operating Expenses 45,514,497 45,669,028   (154,531) (0.3) 
Operating Income (Loss) $ (33,268,279) $(34,103,161) $ (834,882)    (2.4%) 

Non-operating Revenue:    
    State Grants and Contracts $ 14,154,600 $ 14,370,178 $ (215,578)     (1.5)% 
    Federal/Local Grants & Contracts 7,499,337 6,922,766   576,571   8.3 
    Property Taxes 16,212,834 14,151,090   2,061,744 14.6
    Other Income 1,909,153 2,275,539   (366,386) (16.1) 
Total Non-operating Revenue: $ 39,775,924 $ 37,719,573 $ 2,056,351     5.5% 

Increase in Net Assets 6,507,645 3,616,412   2,891,233     79.9 
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 42,939,829 39,323,417  3,616,412  9.2 
Net Assets, End of Year $ 49,447,474 $ 42,939,829 $ 6,507,645   15.2% 

Operating revenue and expense for fiscal year 2008 were very comparable to fiscal year 2007.   

An increase in tuition and fees from fiscal year 2007 of $241,549, or 3.7%, was accompanied by an 
increase in the SURS contribution provided by the state as the fiscal year 2008 amount was $468,029 
greater than the fiscal year 2007 amount.  As explained in Note 4 in the Notes to Financial 
Statements, this SURS contribution is shown as an operating revenue and an operating expense by 
the College.  The net increase in operating revenue from fiscal year 2007 was $680,351 or 5.9%.

Non-operating revenue increased in total by $2,056,351.  The College reflects an increase in local 
property taxes of $2,061,744 and an increase of $576,571 in federal / local grants and contracts.  The 
College’s property tax levy increased due to two primary factors.  The bond and interest levy, which 
was new in fiscal year 2005, increased in fiscal year 2008 to cover the principal and interest payments 
due on the general obligation bonds issued in fiscal years 2005, 2007 and 2008. There was also an 
increase of 5.2% in the Equalized Assessed Valuation which further contributed to the increase in 
property tax revenue.   
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2008 

Auxiliary 28.2%
(29.6% FY07)

Tuition and Fees
55.8%

(57.0% FY07)

Other 16.0%
(13.4% FY07)

Non-Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2008 

Property Taxes
40.7%

(37.5% FY07)

Federal/Local 
Grants & Contracts

18.9%
(18.4% FY07)

State Grants and 
Contracts 35.6%

(38.1% FY07)

Other 4.8%
(6.0% FY07)
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Comparison of Operating Expenses 
Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Operating Expenses: 
    Instruction $13,417,138 $13,002,230 $  414,908 3.2% 
    Academic Support 4,214,199 3,829,341 384,858 10.1 
    Student Services 3,151,038 3,174,670 (23,632) (0.7) 
    Public Service / Continuing Ed. 2,603,870 2,776,572 (172,702) (6.2) 
    Operations of physical facilities 4,202,026 3,463,281 738,745 21.3 
    Institutional Support 7,147,272 9,172,580 (2,025,308) (22.1) 
    Financial Aid 3,798,739 3,863,985 (65,246) (1.7) 
    Auxiliary 3,567,023 3,480,656 86,367 2.5 
    Loss on disposal of equipment 5,097 33,979 (28,882) (85.0) 
    SURS Contribution provided by State 1,954,642 1,486,613 468,029 31.5 
    Depreciation 1,453,453 1,385,121 68,332 4.9 

Total Operating Expenses: $45,514,497 $45,669,028 $(154,531) (.3)% 

Operating expenses for fiscal year 2008 decreased slightly from fiscal year 2007.  The decrease 
amounted to $154,531 or 0.3% over fiscal year 2007.   

Total operating expenditures for Instruction, Academic Support, and Operations of physical facilities 
increased by $1,538,511 in fiscal year 2008.  This increase was offset by a significant decrease in 
operating expenditures for Institutional Support.  The sizable decrease of $2,025,308 in Institutional 
Support is primarily due to a $1 million decrease in Early Retirement Liability expenses from fiscal 
year 2007 to fiscal year 2008, a $500,000 decrease in fiscal year 2008 health insurance costs, and 
the movement of payments made for software licenses to Academic Support from Institutional 
Support.  In addition, a substantial increase in the SURS contribution provided by the state occurred 
as the fiscal year 2008 amount was $468,029 greater than the fiscal year 2007 amount. As explained 
in Note 4 in the Notes to Financial Statements, this SURS contribution is shown as both an operating 
revenue and an operating expense by the College.   
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The following graphic illustration shows the operating expenses by program for fiscal year 2008 by 
percentage of the total with the comparable percentage for fiscal year 2007 in parenthesis.  For both 
years, the largest percentage of College money was spent on Instruction. 

Operating Expenses - Fiscal Year 2008

Financial Aid 8.3%
(8.5% FY07)

Instruction 29.5%
(28.5% FY07)

Institutional Support 
15.7%

(20.1% FY07)

Operations of 
Physical Facilities 

9.2%
(7.6% FY07) Public Service 5.7%

(6.0% FY07)

Student Services 
6.9%

(7.0% FY07)

Academic Support 
9.3%

(8.4% FY07)

Loss on Disposal of 
Equipment 0.1%

(0.1% FY07)

Auxiliary 7.8%
(7.5% FY07)

SURS Contribution 
4.3%

(3.3% FY07)
Depreciation 3.2%

(3.0% FY07)
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Comparison of Net Capital Assets 
Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 

Capital Assets 2008 2007 
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

    Land and Improvements  $  4,724,056 $  4,716,756 $         7,300 0.2% 
    Building and Improvements 35,696,631 29,327,423   6,369,208 21.7 
    Equipment 10,500,340 10,144,479 355,861 3.5 
    Construction In Progress 241,129 2,834,892 (2,593,763) (91.5) 

Total Capital Assets $51,162,156 $47,023,550 $  4,138,606 8.8% 

Less Accumulated Depreciation; 21,353,388 20,204,385 1,149,003 5.7 

Net Capital Assets $29,808,768 $26,819,165 $  2,989,603 11.1% 

As of June 30, 2008, the College has recorded $51,162,156 invested in capital assets, $21,353,388 in 
accumulated depreciation and $29,808,768 in net capital assets.   

Net Capital assets increased $2,989,603 due to several large construction projects being completed 
in fiscal year 2008.  The two largest construction projects completed in fiscal year 2008 were the 
construction of the Community Education Center located in Kewanee, Illinois and the Quad Cities 
Campus boiler system replacement.  Various land and building improvements were also completed in 
fiscal year 2008.  Please see the notes to the financial statements for further information regarding 
Net Capital Assets.

Capital Assets - Fiscal Year 2008

Buildings & 
Improvements

69.8%
(62.4% FY07) Land & 

Improvements
9.2%

(10.0% FY07)

Construction in 
Progress 

0.5%
(6.0% FY07)

Equipment
20.5%

(21.6% FY07)
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2008
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of Black Hawk 
College’s finances and to show Black Hawk College’s accountability for the revenue it receives.  If you 
have questions about this report or need additional information, please contact: 

Jay E. Turney 
Vice President for Finance 
6600 34th Avenue 
Moline, IL 61265 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Net Assets

Primary
Government Component Units

Black Hawk Black Hawk Greater Quad
Black Hawk College East College Cities Tele-

College Foundation Foundation communications
Assets
Current Assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents 27,242,448$ 84,425$ 102,041$           1,636$
   Investments - 1,504,470 1,358,509         1,101,993
   Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles
     of $53,440:

Property taxes 10,682,597 - -                    -
Federal government claims 404,084           - -                    -
State of Illinois claims 1,175,171 - -                    -
Student tuition and fees 104,639           - -                    -
Other 685,695           5,852 86,001              30,711

   Inventory 420,349           - -                    -
   Prepaid expenses 50,065             - -                    -

Total current assets 40,765,048        1,594,747         1,546,551          1,134,340          

Noncurrent Assets:
  Capital assets:

Land 4,724,056 - -                    -
Construction in process 241,129 - -                    -
Building, improvements and equipment, net of

$21,353,388 and $464,391, respectively 24,843,583 - 1,579,279         -
Total capital assets, net of depreciation 29,808,768        -                    1,579,279          -                     
Total noncurrent assets 29,808,768        -                    1,579,279          -                     
Total assets 70,573,816        1,594,747         3,125,830          1,134,340          

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 386,473 7,168 25,286              98,999
  Accrued expenditures:

Payroll 1,008,617 - -                    -
Early retirement 240,597           - -                    -
Accrued vacation 925,441 - -                    -
Other 436,441           - -                    -

  Deferred revenues:
Student tuition and fees 653,751           - -                    -
Other 340,173           - -                    107,933

  Notes and bonds due in less than one year 3,170,000 - 26,214              -
  Leases payable due in less than one year 24,560             - -                    -
  Other liabilities 40,378 - -                    -

Total current liabilities 7,226,431          7,168                51,500               206,932             

Noncurrent Liabilities:
  Early retirement 1,689,911 - -                    -
  Notes and bonds payable in more than one year 12,210,000      - 930,401            -

Total noncurrent liabilities 13,899,911        -                    930,401             -                     
Total liabilities 21,126,342        7,168                981,901             206,932             

Net Assets
   Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 18,504,208 - -                    -
   Restricted 18,116,477 1,232,049 898,538            -
   Unrestricted 12,826,789 355,530 1,245,391         927,408

Total net assets 49,447,474$      1,587,579$       2,143,929$        927,408$           

See Notes to Financial Statements.

June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Primary
Government Component Units

Black Hawk Black Hawk Greater Quad
Black Hawk College East College Cities Tele-

College Foundation Foundation communications
Operating Revenues:

Student tuition and fees, net of 6,830,918$         -$                 -$                  -$                       
  scholarship allowances
Sales, service and rental of 3,456,655           -                   -                    -                         
  facilities and equipment
Tuition chargebacks (1,702)                -                   -                    -                         
SURS contribution provided by state 1,954,642           -                   -                    -                         
Other operating revenue 5,705                 -                   -                    747,642                  

Total operating revenues 12,246,218         -                   -                    747,642                  

Operating expenses:
Instruction 13,417,138         -                   -                    -                         
Academic support 4,214,199           -                   -                    -                         
Student services 3,151,038           -                   -                    -                         
Public service 2,603,870           -                   -                    782,223                  
Auxiliary services 3,567,023           -                   -                    -                         
Institutional support 7,147,272           175,850           134,104             184,640                  
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 3,798,739           65,154             75,710               -                         
SURS contribution provided by state 1,954,642           -                   -                    -                         
Operation of physical facilities 4,202,026           -                   -                    -                         
Loss on disposal of equipment 5,097                 -                   -                    -                         
Depreciation and amortization 1,453,453           -                   133,273             -                         

Total operating expenses 45,514,497         241,004           343,087             966,863                  

Operating (loss) (33,268,279)       (241,004)          (343,087)            (219,221)                 

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes 16,212,834         -                   -                    -                         
State government sources 14,154,600         -                   -                    -                         
Federal government sources 7,499,337           -                   -                    -                         
Investment earnings 893,351              (114,684)          (54,169)              47,701                    
Other sources 1,652,625           174,581           654,440             67,866                    
Interest expense (636,823)            -                   (64,171)              -                         

Total non-operating
  revenues (expenses) 39,775,924         59,897             536,100             115,567                  

Change in net assets 6,507,645           (181,107)          193,013             (103,654)                 

Net assets:
Beginning 42,939,829         1,768,686        1,950,916          1,031,062               
Ending 49,447,474$       1,587,579$      2,143,929$        927,408$                

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Cash Flows

Primary
Government Component Units

Black Hawk Black Hawk Greater Quad
Black Hawk College East College Cities Telecom-

College Foundation Foundation munications
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Tuition and fees 6,720,575$      -$                -$                 -$                 
Payments to employees (20,098,274)     -                  -                   -                   
Payments to suppliers (23,158,309)     (246,295)         (254,470)          (907,370)          
Sales, service, and rental of facilities and equipment 3,391,915        -                  -                   -                   
Other receipts (payments), net (1,030,295)       -                  -                   810,230           

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (34,174,388)     (246,295)         (254,470)          (97,140)            

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State and federal grants and contracts 22,138,135      -                  -                   -                   
Property taxes 14,852,006      -                  -                   -                   

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 36,990,141      -                  -                   -                   

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital assets (4,448,153)       -                  (338,796)          -                   
Proceeds from investments -                   1,148,767       674,271           -                   
Purchases of investments -                   (1,142,594)      (223,316)          (53,898)            
Proceeds from debt 8,600,000        -                  970,000           -                   
Principal paid on debt (1,856,435)       -                  (1,504,375)       -                   
Interest paid on debt (636,823)          -                  (64,171)            -                   
Other sources -                   182,817          605,888           67,866             

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
  and related financing activities 1,658,589        188,990          119,501           13,968             

Cash Flows from Investing Activities, Interest 893,351           62,664            108,507           47,701             

Net increase (decrease) in cash 5,367,693        5,359              (26,462)            (35,471)            

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 21,874,755      79,066            128,503           37,107             
Ending 27,242,448$    84,425$          102,041$         1,636$             

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
  (Used in) Operating Activities:

Operating loss (33,268,279)$   (241,004)$       (343,087)$        (219,221)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
  cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,453,453        -                  133,273           -                   
Loss on disposal of equipment 5,097               -                  -                   -                   
Changes in assets and liabilities:
  (Increase) decrease in receivables (138,374)          -                  -                   8,380               
  (Increase) decrease in inventory 276,931           -                  -                   -                   
  (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 17,625             -                  -                   -                   
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (1,157,830)       (5,291)             (44,656)            59,493             
  Increase (decrease) in accrued expenditures (295,690)          -                  -                   -                   
  Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (35,007)            -                  -                   54,208             
  Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 3,686               -                  -                   -                   
  Increase (decrease) in payable to Greater
   Quad Cities Telecommunications (1,036,000)       -                  -                   -                   
     Total adjustments (906,109)          (5,291)             88,617             122,081           

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (34,174,388)$   (246,295)$       (254,470)$        (97,140)$          

Noncash, Capital and Related Financing Activities:
SURS contribution paid by state 1,954,642$      -$                -$                 -$                 

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

        

Assets
  Cash 1,952,783$            

Liabilities, claims payable 452,783                 
Net Assets, unrestricted 1,500,000$            

Additions:
  Employer paid premiums 4,500,000$            
  Employee paid premiums 529,272                 
  Investment earnings 60,723                   
      Total additions 5,089,995$            

Deductions:
  Health and dental claims 3,679,562              
  Administrative 460,433                 
      Total deductions 4,139,995$            

             Change in net assets 950,000                 

Net assets:
  Beginning 550,000                 
  Ending 1,500,000$            

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Voluntary Employees' Benefit Association (VEBA) Health Benefit Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Voluntary Employees' Benefit Association (VEBA) Health Benefit Plan
June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization:

Black Hawk College, Illinois Community College District #503 (College) is an Illinois Community College 
operating under the mandates and guidelines of the Illinois Board of Higher Education and the Illinois 
Community College Board (ICCB).  The College offers a wide range of educational opportunities, including 
liberal studies, business training, continuing education, and community service programs.  The College was 
organized to provide an excellent, affordable alternative in higher education with campus locations in Moline 
and Kewanee, Illinois and numerous outreach sites.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Financial Reporting Entity:  The College is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees.  Board 
members are elected through general elections to a six-year term.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the College implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement Number 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. This 
Statement amends GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity to provide additional guidance to 
determine whether certain organizations for which the College is not financially accountable should be 
reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the College.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its 
component units, the Black Hawk College Foundation, the Black Hawk East College Foundation, and the 
Greater Quad Cities Telecommunications Corporation (GQCTC).

The two Foundations are legally separate, tax-exempt component units of the College.  The Foundations act 
primarily as fund-raising organizations to supplement the resources that are available to the College in 
support of its programs.  The 17-member boards of the Foundations are self-perpetuating and consist of 
graduates and friends of the College.  Although the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts 
from the Foundations, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundations hold and invest are 
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors.  Because these restricted resources held by the 
Foundations can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundations are considered 
component units of the College.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the Black Hawk College Foundation and the Black Hawk East 
Foundation distributed $65,154 and $75,710 respectively, to the College for both restricted and unrestricted 
purposes.

The Foundations are private-not-for-profit organizations that report their financial results under Financial 
Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Statements.  Most significant to the Foundations’ operations and 
reporting model are FASB Statement No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made, and FASB Statement No. 117, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit-Organizations. As such, certain 
revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria 
and presentation features.  No modifications have been made to the Foundations’ financial information in the 
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences.
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Financial statements for the Black Hawk College Foundation can be obtained by calling the Foundation at 
309-796-5302. Financial statements for the Black Hawk East College Foundation can be obtained by calling 
the Foundation at 309-852-5671. 

GQCTC is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of the College.  GQCTC is an organization which 
provides oversight and support to Black Hawk College WQPT-TV (WQPT-TV), a department of Black Hawk 
College.  GQCTC solicits funds in the name of and with the approval of WQPT-TV and the College.  WQPT 
has a dual board structure.  Governance is provided by the Black Hawk College Board of Trustees, as 
licensee.  WQPT’s General Manager reports directly to the College President who in turn reports to the 
Board of Trustees.  Governance is also provided by the GQCTC, an independent 501(c)3 corporation with a 
12-member board of directors.  Ten board members are selected from the bi-state community based upon 
interest to serve and ability to further the station’s mission.  One member represents the College Board of 
Trustees and the twelfth member, serving as GQCTC secretary, is WQPT’s General Manager.  All board 
members serve voluntarily and without compensation.  Officer elections are held annually.  Board members 
may serve two consecutive three-year terms. Although the College does not control the timing or amount of 
receipts from GQCTC, the majority of resources or income thereon, that GQCTC holds and invests are 
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors.  Because these restricted resources held by GQCTC 
can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, GQCTC is considered a component unit of the 
College.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, GQCTC raised and expended $863,209 and $966,863, respectively.
Financial statements for GQCTC can be obtained by calling GQCTC at 309-796-5052.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation:  For financial reporting 
purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.  
Accordingly, the College’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized 
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  All significant intra-College 
transactions have been eliminated.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the College receives value without 
directly giving equal value in return, includes property taxes; federal, state, and local grants; state 
appropriations; and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the period for which the levy is intended to finance.  Revenues from grants, state appropriations, and other 
contributions are recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be 
used or the fiscal year when the use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the College must 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the College on a reimbursement basis.
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The College has a fiduciary fund type.  Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by a 
governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units, and/or other funds.  The College has the following fiduciary fund type:

Pension (and other employee benefit) trust fund – is the fund type for the College’s health benefit 
plan and is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the business-type activities, using the same 
measurement focus and basis of accounting.  Employee contributions are recognized in the period in 
which the contributions are due.  Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer 
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.  Claims payable are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the health plan.  The fund accounts for the assets of the 
Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA).  The VEBA was established under Section 
501(C)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The trust provides for payment of health (medical, dental, and 
vision) claims and health plan administrative and other directly related costs.

Classification of Revenues:  Operating revenue include activities that have the characteristics of exchange 
transactions, such as student tuition and fees and sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of 
scholarship discounts and allowances.  Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of non-exchange transactions, such as 1) local property taxes, 2) state appropriations, 3) 
most federal, state and local grants and contracts, and federal appropriations, and 4) gifts and contributions.

Net Assets:  Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.  “Net assets invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt”, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
any outstanding balances of any borrowings, used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those 
assets.  Significant unspent proceeds are reported as restricted.  Net assets are reported as restricted when 
there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions 
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.  When an expense is incurred 
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the College first applies 
restricted resources.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Property taxes:  Property taxes are recognized as a receivable at the time they are levied and the current 
taxes receivable represent the 2007 levy.  Property tax revenue recorded on the financial statements relates 
to the 2007 levy. Property taxes are levied each year on all taxable real property in the College District. 
Property taxes are certified on or before the last Tuesday in December and are attached as an enforceable 
lien on the property as of the preceding January 1.  These taxes become due and collectible in 2008 and are 
collected by the county collectors in the College District who in turn remit to the College District its respective 
share.  An allowance is provided for uncollectible taxes.  Property taxes that are not budgeted for current 
year operations are shown as deferred revenue.

Student Tuition and Fees:  Student tuition and fees include all such items assessed against students for 
educational and service purposes.
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

College Bookstores Inventory:  Inventories of the College bookstores are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out) or market (net realizable value). 

Compensated Absences:  Vacation leave is accrued as a liability as it is earned.  Sick leave benefits are not 
payable upon retirement or termination. 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets are defined by the College as assets with an initial, individual cost of $2,500 
or more and an initial useful life of one year or greater.  Assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or 
constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of 
the asset are not capitalized. 

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
respective assets.  The estimated useful lives for each capital asset type are as follows: 

Years

Buildings and improvements 50 
Land and improvements 50 
Equipment 4 - 10 

The College’s collection of works of art, library books, and other similar assets are not capitalized.  These 
collections are unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for and preserved, 
and subject to College policy that requires proceeds from the sale of these items to be used to acquire other 
collection items. 

Investments:  Investments are stated at fair value. 

Tax Status:  The College is a not-for-profit institution organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Illinois and has nontaxable status under the Internal Revenue Code. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of reporting cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Accounting Pronouncements:  The College is applying all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as following all Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements 
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the 
Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments

Under provision of the College’s investment policy, the College may invest in any type of security allowed by 
law as set out in Illinois Compiled Statutes.  A summary of allowable securities follows:

! Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities, which are guaranteed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America.

! Bonds, notes debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its 
agencies.

! Interest-bearing savings account, interest-bearing certificates of deposit, or interest-bearing time 
deposits, or other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the Illinois 
Banking Act and only those insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

! Short-term obligations of corporations organized in the United States with assets exceeding 
$500,000,000.

! Short-term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association or in shares or other 
forms of security legally issuable by savings and loan associations incorporated under the laws of 
the State of Illinois or any other state or under the laws of the United States and only in those 
savings and loan associations insured by the FDIC.

! Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of government securities or agreements to 
repurchase such obligations.

! Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund.

! Illinois State Funds Money Market Fund.

! Funds managed, operated and administered by a bank provided that the public agency has an 
undivided interest in the assets of the fund.

! Repurchase agreements of government securities having the meaning set out in the Government 
Securities Act of 1986.

! Dividends-bearing share accounts, share certificate accounts of a credit union with its principal 
office located in Illinois and insured by applicable law.

! Funds managed, operated, and administered by a bank.
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

At June 30, 2008, the College’s cash and cash equivalents balances are as follows:

Depository accounts, checking and 
  certificates of deposit $27,231,048
Petty cash 11,400

  Total cash and cash equivalents 27,242,448

Fiduciary fund, depository accounts for VEBA 1,952,783

  Total cash and cash equivalents $29,195,231

Less:  Petty cash 11,400

  Total carrying amount of deposits $29,183,831

As of June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of the College’s deposits totaled $29,183,831, with a bank balance 
of $30,556,413.  Of the $30,556,413 bank balance, $30,556,413 was covered by federal depository 
insurance or collateral held by the College’s agent in the College’s name. The College has no foreign 
currency risk for deposits at year end.
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2008, is as follows:

Balance Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008

Land $ 760,862 $         -  $           - $ 760,862
Construction in process 2,834,892 3,652,858 (6,246,621) 241,129

Total capital assets not
being depreciated 3,595,754 3,652,858 (6,246,621) 1,001,991

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 29,327,423 6,369,208 - 35,696,631
Land improvements 3,955,894 7,300 - 3,963,194
Equipment 10,144,479 665,408 (309,547) 10,500,340

Total capital assets
being depreciated 43,427,796 7,041,916 (309,547) 50,160,165

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 12,295,733 649,587 - 12,945,320
Land improvements 333,038 79,192 - 412,230
Equipment 7,575,614 724,674 (304,450) 7,995,838

Total accumulated depreciation 20,204,385 1,453,453 (304,450) 21,353,388

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 23,223,411 5,588,463 (5,097) 28,806,777

Total capital assets, net $26,819,165 $9,241,321 $(6,251,718) $29,808,768

Note 4. Retirement Plan

Plan Description:

Black Hawk College contributes to the State Universities Retirement System of Illinois (SURS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation whereby the State of 
Illinois makes substantially all actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of the participating 
employers.  SURS was established July 21, 1941 to provide retirement annuities and other benefits for staff 
members and employees of the state universities, certain affiliated organizations, and certain other state 
educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents, and other beneficiaries of such 
employees.  SURS is considered a component unit of the State of Illinois’ financial reporting entity and is 
included in the state’s financial reports as a pension trust fund.  SURS is governed by Section 5/15, Chapter 
40, of the Illinois Compiled Statutes.  SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by writing to SURS, 1901 
Fox Drive, Champaign, IL 61820 or by calling 1-800-275-7877.
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Black Hawk College
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Retirement Plan (Continued)

Funding Policy:

Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary, and substantially all employer 
contributions are made by the State of Illinois on behalf of the individual employers at an actuarially 
determined rate.  The current rate is 12.88% of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of 
plan members and employers are established and may be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.  The 
employer contributions to SURS for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $187,084,
$148,397, and $151,648, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The employer 
contributions made by the State of Illinois on behalf of the College to SURS were $1,954,642, $1,486,613 
and $1,021,967 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.  These amounts are 
included as both revenue and expense of the College.

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Due
Balance Balance Within

July 1, 2007 Additions Repayments June 30, 2008 One Year

Capital leases payable $ 60,995 $        - $  (36,435) $ 24,560 $ 24,560
Bonds payable 8,600,000 8,600,000 (1,820,000) 15,380,000 3,170,000
Accrued vacation 853,875 596,699 (525,133) 925,441 925,441
Early retirement 2,533,645 - (603,137)  1,930,508  240,597

   $12,048,515 $9,196,699 $(2,984,705) $18,260,509 $4,360,598

Capital Leases Payable:  Capital lease obligations represent various vehicles and computer equipment with 
equal annual payments and fixed interest rates ranging from 5.85% to 6.9%.  The final maturity date is June 
3, 2009.  The obligations are secured by the equipment leased.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for capital leases as of 
June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
  2009 $24,739

Less amount representing interest    (179) 

    $24,560
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Operating Leases:  The College has various operating leases to cover equipment and facilities.  Of the 
$754,759 in total operating leases, $675,387 covers leases for WQPT-TV.  WQPT-TV leases space for 
broadcasting operations and two communication towers under separate operating leases.  Minimum lease 
and rental commitments are $2,400 per month through February 2023, $2,799 per month through January 
2010 and $1,230 per month through August 2011, respectively.  The College also leases space at the Illinois 
Employment & Training Center for $7,826 per month through February 2009.  Lease expense for the year 
ended June 30, 2008 was $172,160. 

The annual requirements for operating leases as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

 Year ending June 30: 
  2008 $171,060 
  2009 139,756 
  2010 63,153 
  2011 43,560 
  2012 30,030 
  2013 - 2017 144,000 
  2018 - 2022 144,000 
  2023     19,200

Total operating leases $754,759

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2004:  On November 10, 2004 the College issued 
$5,300,000 in General Obligation Bonds to refund $5,300,000 in short-term debt certificates.  The debt 
certificates were issued and received by the College on July 14, 2004.  The purpose of issuing these debt 
certificates was to use the proceeds to expand and renovate facilities throughout the College and to expand and 
upgrade the College’s technology infrastructure and acquire and implement additional software to assist in the 
College’s service and effectiveness.  Principal and interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds are to be 
paid annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 2009.  Interest only payments are due 
June 1 of each year beginning June 1, 2006.  Interest rates range from 2.0% to 4.0% over the life of the bonds. 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation 
Bonds as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

   Principal Interest Total
 Year ending June 30: 
  2009 $1,265,000 $74,613 $1,339,613 
  2010   1,315,000 24,656 1,339,656

Total $2,580,000 $99,269 $2,679,269

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2006:  On November 9, 2006 the College issued 
$4,800,000 in General Obligation Bonds to refund $4,800,000 in short-term debt certificates.  The debt 
certificates were issued and received by the College on July 14, 2006.  The purpose of issuing these debt 
certificates was to temporarily increase funding levels throughout the College.  Principal and interest payments 
on the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 
2009.  Interest only payments are due June 1 of each year beginning June 1, 2008.  Interest rates range from 
2.0% to 4.0% over the life of the bonds. 
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation 
Bonds as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total
 Year ending June 30: 
  2009 $1,700,000 $238,675 $1,938,675 
  2010   2,500,000 89,375 2,589,375

Total $4,200,000 $328,050 $4,528,050

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2008:  On January 29, 2008 the College issued 
$8,600,000 in General Obligation Bonds.  $4,100,000 of the amount will be used to increase the Working Cash 
Fund Balance.  The remaining $4,500,000 will be used for various Operation and Maintenance Projects at the 
College, which includes a new Community Education Center in Kewanee.  Principal and interest payments on 
the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 
2011.  Interest only payments are due June 1 of each year.  Interest rates range from 3.5% to 4.0% over the life 
of the bonds. 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation 
Bonds as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total
 Year ending June 30: 
  2009 $   205,000 $   458,015 $  663,015 
  2010 1,250,000 310,985 1,560,985  
  2011 4,145,000 202,845 4,347,845 
  2012   3,000,000 60,000 3,060,000

Total $8,600,000 $1,031,845 $9,631,845

The College is subject to a debt limitation of 2.875% of its assessed valuation of $3,229,766,461. As of June 30, 
2008 the College had $77,475,786 of remaining legal debt margin. 

Note 6. Early Retirement and Voluntary Separation Plans

The College has offered a number of voluntary separation and early retirement incentive plans (plans) 
covering individuals of specified employee groups who met stated age and service retirements.  The plans 
generally provided benefits at the time of employee separation based upon combinations of employee age, 
years of continuous service, and salary.  In addition, the plans provide health, vision, and dental insurance; 
certain of the plans also offer life insurance benefits.  The length of coverage varies from five years following 
the date of separation, up to the life of the separated participant.  Some plans require retiree co-payment.  
Currently 75 participants are covered under the various voluntary separation and early retirement plans.  
Costs related to these plans are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The assumptions used in calculating the 
liability were a decreasing health care trend rate of 6.5% to 4.0%. The recorded liability for these plans is 
$1,930,508 as of June 30, 2008. 

Note 7. Restatement of Beginning Fund Balances

Beginning of the year fund balances were adjusted in the amount of $2,382,054 to reflect the modified 
accrual basis of accounting for early retirement liability balances not payable with current financial resources.
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Note 8. Risk Management and Insurance

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort, theft, damage to or the destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Those risks are covered by the purchase 
of commercial insurance.  Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Beginning October 2000, the College began self insuring for employee medical, dental, and vision coverage 
and then established the Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) on July 1, 2002.  Self 
insurance is in effect up to an aggregate stop/loss of approximately $5,600,000 with a $125,000 per covered 
person stop/loss amount.  Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for losses in excess of 
the aggregate stop/loss amount.  All claim handling procedures are performed by an independent claims 
administrator. 

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated.  Claims payable include all known claims and an amount for claims that have been 
incurred but not reported (IBNR).  Claim liabilities are estimated by considering the effects of inflation, recent 
claim settlement trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and other economic and social factors.  
The changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as 
follows: 

     2008            2007 

 Liability for unpaid claims, July 1 $   534,809 $   801,877 
 Claims and changes in estimates 3,679,562 4,906,666 
 Claim payments  (3,761,588)  (5,173,734)

  Liability for unpaid claims, June 30 $   452,783 $   534,809

Note 9. Commitments

The College has received a number of federal and state grants for specific purposes which are subject to 
review and audit by grantor agencies.  Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement to granting 
agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants.  Based upon prior experience, the 
College management believes that such disallowances, if any, will not be material. 

Note 10. Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund Expenditures 

Black Hawk College had the following Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2008: 

 Security & safety related salaries and benefits $   661,018 
 Risk management & loss prevention 297,276 
 Insurance  793,570 
 Legal services  55,924 
 Security and safety related      130,475

  Total Liability, Protection & Settlement Fund expenditures $1,938,263
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Illinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets

Fund Balances - All Fund Types 42,908,655$     

50% of the 2007 tax levy recognized in FY 2008 8,071,830         

Long-term portion of early retirement liability (1,689,911)        

Summer 2008 revenue recognized in FY 2008 223,505            
Summer 2008 expense recognized in FY 2008 (66,605)             

156,900            

Net Assets of Statement of Net Assets 49,447,474$     

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Net Increase in Fund Balances 4,750,850$       

Reduction in student tuition and fees (6,531,069)        
Reduction in financial aid 6,531,069         

Net Effect -                    

Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds 4,448,153         
Expended for capital assets (4,448,153)        

Net Effect -                    

Long-term debt issued (8,600,000)        
Long-term debt retired 1,856,435         
Additions to general long-term debt fund 6,743,565         

Net Effect -                    

Reduction in long-term early retirement liability 692,143            

50% of the 2007 tax levy recognized in FY 2008 8,071,830         
50% of the 2006 tax levy recognized in FY 2007 (7,035,521)        

Net Effect 1,036,309         

Summer 2007 revenue recognized in FY 2007 (196,523)           
Summer 2007 expense recognized in FY 2007 67,966              
Summer 2008 revenue recognized in FY 2008 223,505            
Summer 2008 expense recognized in FY 2008 (66,605)             

Net Effect 28,343              

Change in Net Assets 6,507,645$       

This schedule is supplemental information and is maintained for management purposes only.

Black Hawk College
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Illinois Community College District #503

Combining Balance Sheet

Operations & Auxiliary Restricted
Education Maintenance Enterprises Purposes Audit

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund
  Cash and cash equivalents 4,704,777$ -$                    2,025$        1,916,115$ 87,326$        
  Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
     Property Taxes 3,384,824 1,977,771 -                  -                     55,372          
     Federal government claims -                      -                      -                  404,084         -                   
     State government claims 874,479           75,733            -                  224,959         -                   
     Student tuition and fees 98,829             -                      5,810          -                     -                   
     Other 65,813             194                 463,695 155,993         -                   
  Due from other funds 2,250,778 79,875            772             402,610         -                   
  Inventory -                      420,349 -                     -                   
  Prepaid expenses 103,711           -                      -                  12,959           -                   
  Capital assets:
    Land -                      -                      -                  -                     -                   
    Construction in process -                      -                      -                  -                     -                   
    Building, improvements and equipment

-                      -                      -                  -                     -                   
Total assets 11,483,211$ 2,133,573$ 892,651$ 3,116,720$ 142,698$

Liabilities and Fund Balance
  Accounts payable 97,025$           91,005$          8,582$        109,195$ -$                 
  Accrued expenses
      Payroll 937,820           19,200            5,403          42,792           -                   
      Early retirement 238,661           1,936              -                  -                     -                   
      Accrued vacation 780,975           67,857 32,538 - -
      Other 2,789               1,697              514             7,993             3,301            
  Due to other funds 395,250           751,729          964,875 519,723         -                   
  Deferred revenue
      Property taxes 2,557,591 1,494,414 -                  -                     41,840          
      Student tuition and fees 723,974           -                      12,680 140,602 -                   
      Other 4,032 -                      330             269,995         -                   
  Other liabilities 21,047             19,331            -                  -                     -                   
  Bonds payable -                      -                      -                  -                     -                   
  Leases payable -                      -                      -                  -                     -                   

Total liabilities 5,759,164 2,447,169 1,024,922 1,090,300 45,141          

Fund balance
  Restricted -                      -                      -                  2,026,420 97,557          
  Unrestricted 5,724,047 (313,596)         (132,271) -                     -                   

Total fund balance 5,724,047 (313,596)         (132,271) 2,026,420 97,557          
Total liabilities and 
fund balance 11,483,211$ 2,133,573$ 892,651$ 3,116,720$ 142,698$

See Note to Supplemental Information.

Black Hawk College

Assets

       net of $21,353,388 depreciation

June 30, 2008
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Liability,
Protection, and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General

Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term
Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total

583,345$            11,413,980$ 1,304,697$ 7,230,183$ -$                        -$                     27,242,448$

1,588,759           -                       2,611,019 1,064,852 -                          -                       10,682,597         
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       404,084              
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       1,175,171           
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       104,639              
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       685,695              

2,809                  -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       2,736,844           
-                         -                       -                      -                          -                       420,349              
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       116,670              

-                         -                       -                      -                       4,724,056           -                       4,724,056           
-                         -                       -                      -                       241,129              -                       241,129              

-                         -                       -                      -                       24,843,583         -                       24,843,583         
2,174,913$         11,413,980$ 3,915,716$ 8,295,035$ 29,808,768$ -$                     73,377,265$

13,132$              -$                     -$                    67,534$           -$                        -$                     386,473$            
-                       

3,402                  -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       1,008,617           
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       240,597              

44,071                -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       925,441              
7,901                  -                       177,546 234,700           -                          -                       436,441              

76,574                -                       -                      28,693             -                          -                       2,736,844           

1,200,475           -                       1,972,901 804,609           -                          -                       8,071,830           
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       877,256              
-                         -                       -                      65,816             -                          -                       340,173              
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          -                       40,378                
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          15,380,000 15,380,000         
-                         -                       -                      -                       -                          24,560             24,560

1,345,555           -                       2,150,447 1,201,352 -                          15,404,560 30,468,610         

829,358              10,194,190 1,765,269 7,093,683 -                          (3,890,000) 18,116,477         
-                         1,219,790 -                      -                       29,808,768         (11,514,560) 24,792,178         

829,358              11,413,980 1,765,269 7,093,683 29,808,768         (15,404,560) 42,908,655         

2,174,913$         11,413,980$ 3,915,716$ 8,295,035$ 29,808,768$ -$                     73,377,265$
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Illinois Community College District #503

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Operations
and

Education Maintenance Auxiliary Restricted Audit
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund

Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes 5,057,170$ 2,954,545$ -$                  -$                   76,157$
      Tuition chargeback (1,702) - -                   - -
      Other - - -                   5,705              -                

Total local government sources 5,055,468       2,954,545        -                    5,705              76,157         
  State governmental sources 9,577,303 814,180 -                   3,739,575       -
  Federal governmental sources 57,231 - -                   7,442,106       -
  Student tuition and fees 11,982,184 95,162 233,254 351,705          -
  Sales, services and rental of facilities and equipment 631,322 175,522 3,234,537   87,974 -
  Investment earnings 189,172 - -                   68,577            -
  Other sources 22,224 25,487 94,907 1,423,325       -
  Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds - - -                   - -
  Payment of long-term debt - - -                   - -
  SURS contribution provided by state -                    -                     -                   1,954,642       -                

Total revenues 27,514,904     4,064,896        3,562,698     15,073,609     76,157         

Expenditures:
    Instruction 12,848,964 - -                   681,260          -
    Academic support 3,035,611 - -                   1,215,942       -
    Student services 2,148,194 - -                   1,007,428       -
    Public services 563,244 - -                   2,111,698       -
    Institutional support 5,665,745 - -                   270,284          56,500
    Auxiliary services - -                     3,528,921 38,362            -
    Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 2,589,367 - -                   7,740,441       -
    SURS contribution provided by state - - -                   1,954,642       -
    Depreciation - - -                   - -
    Loss on disposal of assets - - -                   - -
    Operation of physical facilities -                    3,517,973 -                   140,007          -                

Total expenditures 26,851,125     3,517,973        3,528,921     15,160,064     56,500         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 663,779          546,923           33,777          (86,455)           19,657         

Other financing sources (uses):
  Bond proceeds -                      -                       -                    -                      -                  
  Bond premium (discount) -                      -                       -                    -                      -                  
  Operating transfers in 1,600,000       -                       -                    52,787            -                  
  Operating transfers out (52,787) - -                   (1,692,000)      -                

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,547,213       -                       -                    (1,639,213)      -                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses 2,210,992       546,923           33,777          (1,725,668)      19,657         

Fund balance
  Beginning, as restated 3,513,055 (860,519) (166,048) 3,752,088       77,900
  Ending 5,724,047$ (313,596)$ (132,271)$ 2,026,420$     97,557$

See Note to Supplemental Information.

Black Hawk College

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Liability,
Protection,

and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General
Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term

Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total

2,301,799$       -$                      3,214,755$        1,572,099$ -$ -$                      15,176,525$
-                        -                        - - - -                       (1,702)
-                        -                        - - - -                       5,705

2,301,799         -                        3,214,755          1,572,099         -                        -                        15,180,528         
-                        -                        - 23,542 - -                       14,154,600
-                        -                        - - - -                       7,499,337
-                        -                        - - - -                       12,662,305
-                        -                        - - - -                       4,129,355
-                        351,588            31,313 252,701 - -                       893,351
-                        -                        - - - -                       1,565,943
-                        -                        - -                      4,448,153 -                       4,448,153
-                        -                        - - -                      1,856,435         1,856,435
-                        -                        - - - -                       1,954,642

2,301,799         351,588            3,246,068          1,848,342         4,448,153         1,856,435          64,344,649         

-                        -                        - - - -                       13,530,224
-                        -                        - - - -                       4,251,553
-                        -                        - - - -                       3,155,622
-                        -                        - - - -                       2,674,942

1,196,139         -                        2,403,474 1,078,716 - -                       10,670,858
-                        -                        - - - -                       3,567,283
-                        -                        - - - -                       10,329,808
-                        -                        - - - -                       1,954,642
-                        -                        - -                      1,453,453 -                       1,453,453
-                        -                        - - 5,097 -                       5,097

742,124            -                        -                       3,686,895 - -                       8,086,999
1,938,263         -                        2,403,474          4,765,611         1,458,550         -                        59,680,481         

363,536            351,588            842,594             (2,917,269)        2,989,603         1,856,435          4,664,168           

-                        4,100,000 -                        4,500,000 -                        (8,600,000)         -                          
-                        (56,540)             -                        143,222 -                        -                        86,682                
-                        -                        92,000               -                        -                        -                        1,744,787           
-                        -                        - - - -                       (1,744,787)
-                        4,043,460         92,000               4,643,222         -                        (8,600,000)         86,682                

363,536            4,395,048         934,594             1,725,953         2,989,603         (6,743,565)         4,750,850           

465,822            7,018,932         830,675             5,367,730 26,819,165 (8,660,995)        38,157,805
829,358$          11,413,980$      1,765,269$        7,093,683$ 29,808,768$ (15,404,560)$ 42,908,655$
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Notes to Supplemental Information 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fund Accounting:  In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of available 
resources, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting as promulgated 
in the ICCB Fiscal Management Manual.  Financial statements by fund, required by the ICCB, are included 
as supplementary information.  This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified 
for accounting and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. 

Note 2. Restatement of Beginning Fund Balances

Beginning of the year fund balances were adjusted in the amount of $2,382,054 to reflect the modified 
accrual basis of accounting for early retirement liability balances not payable with current financial resources.
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Statistical Narrative 

This section of the College’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed statistical information 
as a context for understanding information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information in relation to the overall financial health of the institution. 

Contents

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the College’s financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the College’s most significant local 
revenue sources, tuition and fees and property taxes. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the College’s current 
levels of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the College’s financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the College’s financial report relates to the services the College provides and the activities 
it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year.  The College implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; 
schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year. 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Equalized Assessed Valuations and Tax Collections

Tax Levy Year
2007 2006 2005

Equalized assessed valuations:
  Bureau County 17,628,542$                16,918,621$                16,973,904$                
  Henderson County 1,698,174                    1,591,177                    1,398,043                    
  Henry County 695,623,326                656,536,725                625,801,917                
  Knox County 9,122,842                    8,684,903                    9,038,900                    
  Marshall County 70,150                         46,296                         45,445                         
  Mercer County 196,770,241                185,434,646                173,762,781                
  Rock Island County 2,190,307,542             2,088,112,573             2,008,795,332             
  Stark County 72,073,858                  69,196,271                  71,304,662                  
  Whiteside County 46,471,786                  44,680,381                  44,259,906                  

3,229,766,461$           3,071,201,593$           2,951,380,890$           

Tax rates (per $100 of assessed valuation):
  Education Fund 0.1200                         0.1200                         0.1200                         
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 0.0700                         0.0700                         0.0700                         
  Bond and Interest Fund 0.1226                         0.0796                         0.0390                         
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 0.0746                         0.0706                         0.0716                         
  Audit Fund 0.0026                         0.0022                         0.0024                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 0.0500                         0.0492                         0.0500                         
  Equity 0.0618                         0.0663                         0.0615                         

0.5016                         0.4579                         0.4145                         

Tax extensions:
  Education Fund 5,133,198$                  5,030,968$                  4,926,578$                  
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 2,999,355                    2,840,523                    2,496,145                    
  Bond and Interest Fund 3,959,694                    2,444,676                    1,151,039                    
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 2,409,406                    2,168,268                    2,113,189                    
  Audit Fund 83,974                         67,566                         70,833                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 1,614,883                    1,511,031                    1,475,690                    

16,200,510$                14,063,032$                12,233,474$                

  Education Fund 1,731,441$                  5,182,639$                  4,925,426$                  
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 1,011,690                    2,660,846                    2,495,561                    
  Bond and Interest Fund 1,335,615                    2,448,220                    1,150,770                    
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 812,699                       2,171,411                    2,112,695                    
  Audit Fund 28,325                         67,664                         70,817                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 544,704                       1,513,222                    1,475,346                    

5,464,474$                  14,044,002$                12,230,615$                

Tax extensions:
  Tax receivable 10,736,036$                -$                             -$                             
  Written off -                               -                               -                               
  Allowance for uncollectible taxes (53,439)                        -                               -                               

10,682,597$                -$                             -$                             

Taxes receivable:
  Education Fund 3,384,824 -$                             -$                             
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 1,977,771 -                               -                               
  Bond and Interest Fund 2,611,019 -                               -                               
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 1,588,759 -                               -                               
  Audit Fund 55,372 -                               -                               
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 1,064,852 -                               -                               

10,682,597$                -$                             -$                             

Percentage of extensions collected 33.73% 99.86% 99.98%

Less tax collections (cumulative through June 30, 2008):
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Illinois Community College District #503

        

Legal Debt Margin

Assessed valuation,  2007 levy 3,229,766,461$     

 Debt limit, 2.875% of assessed valuation 92,855,786$          
 Bonded indebtedness (15,380,000)          
         Legal debt margin 77,475,786$          

Black Hawk College

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin
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ICCB Uniform Financial Statements

The Uniform Financial Statements are required by the Illinois Community College Board for the purpose of 
providing consistent audited data for every community college district.  Regardless of the basis of accounting 
used for a College’s balance sheet and statement of revenues and expenditures, the Uniform Financial 
Statements are completed using the modified accrual basis of accounting prescribed by the NCGA 
Statement No. 1 and related interpretations. 

The Uniform Financial Statements include the following: 

 No. 1 – All Funds Summary 
 No. 2 – Summary of Fixed Assets and Debt 
 No. 3 – Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures 
 No. 4 – Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures 
 No. 5 – Expenditures by Activity – Current Funds 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 1 - All Funds Summary
Year ended June 30, 2008

Operation and Bond &
Education Maintenance Interest

Fund Fund Fund

Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year as restated 3,513,055$ (860,519)$ 830,675$
Revenues:
  Local tax revenue 5,057,170 2,954,545 3,214,755
  All other local revenue (1,702) - -
  ICCB grants 8,172,765 658,120 -
  All other state revenue 1,404,538 156,060 -
  Federal revenue 57,231 - -
  Student tuition and fees 11,982,184 95,162 -
  All other revenue 842,718 201,009 31,313

Total revenues 27,514,904 4,064,896 3,246,068

Expenditures:
  Instruction 12,848,964 - -
  Academic support 3,035,611 - -
  Student services 2,148,194 - -
  Public service 563,244 - -
  Auxiliary services - - -
  Operations and maintenance - 3,517,973 -
  Institutional support 5,665,745 - 2,403,474
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 2,589,367 - -

Total expenditures 26,851,125 3,517,973 2,403,474

Net transfers 1,547,213 - 92,000
Fund balance (deficit), end of year 5,724,047$ (313,596)$ 1,765,269$
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Liability,
Protection,

Operations and Auxiliary Restricted Working and
Maintenance - Enterprises Purpose Cash Audit Settlement

Restricted Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

5,367,730$ (166,048)$ 3,752,088$ 7,018,932$ 77,900$ 465,822$ 19,999,635$

1,572,099 - - - 76,157 2,301,799 15,176,525
4,643,222 - 5,705 4,043,460 - - 8,690,685

23,542 - 861,451 - - - 9,715,878
- - 2,878,124 - - - 4,438,722
- - 7,442,106 - - - 7,499,337
- 233,254 351,705 - - - 12,662,305

252,701 3,329,444 1,579,876 351,588 - - 6,588,649
6,491,564 3,562,698 13,118,967 4,395,048 76,157 2,301,799 64,772,101

- - 681,260 - - - 13,530,224
- - 1,215,942 - - - 4,251,553
- - 1,007,428 - - - 3,155,622
- - 2,111,698 - - - 2,674,942
- 3,528,921 38,362 - - - 3,567,283

3,686,895 - 140,007 - - 742,124 8,086,999
1,078,716 - 270,284 - 56,500 1,196,139 10,670,858

- - 7,740,441 - - - 10,329,808
4,765,611 3,528,921 13,205,422 - 56,500 1,938,263 56,267,289

- - (1,639,213) - - - -
7,093,683$ (132,271)$ 2,026,420$ 11,413,980$ 97,557$ 829,358$ 28,504,447$
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 2 - Summary of Fixed Assets and Debt

        

Fixed Fixed
Asset/Debt Asset/Debt
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008

Fixed Assets:
  Land 4,716,756$         7,300$                -$                    4,724,056$         
  Building and improvements 29,327,423         6,369,208           -                      35,696,631         
  Equipment 10,144,479         665,408              (309,547)             10,500,340         
  Other 2,834,892           3,652,858           (6,246,621)          241,129              

47,023,550         10,694,774         (6,556,168)          51,162,156         
Accumulated depreciation (20,204,385)        (1,453,453)          304,450              (21,353,388)        

Total fixed assets 26,819,165$       9,241,321$         (6,251,718)$        29,808,768$       

Fixed Debt:
  Other fixed liabilities 60,995$              -$                    (36,435)$             24,560$              
  Bonds payable 8,600,000           8,600,000           (1,820,000)          15,380,000         

Total fixed debt 8,660,995$         8,600,000$         (1,856,435)$        15,404,560$       

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures
Year ended June 30, 2008

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating

Fund Fund Funds
Operating revenue by source:
  Local government:
    Local taxes  5,057,170$ 2,954,545$ 8,011,715$
    Chargeback revenue  (1,702) - (1,702)
    Other local revenue - - -

5,055,468 2,954,545 8,010,013

  State government:
    ICCB credit hour grants 3,533,736 658,120 4,191,856
    ICCB equalization grants 4,471,972 - 4,471,972
    ICCB - Career and Technical Education 167,057 - 167,057
    Corporate personal property replacement tax 1,404,538 156,060 1,560,598

9,577,303 814,180 10,391,483

  Federal government:
    Department of Education 32,968 - 32,968
    Department of Health and Human Services - - -

OthOther 24 26324,263 - 24 26324,263
57,231 - 57,231

  Student tuition and fees:
    Tuition 11,120,629 - 11,120,629
    Fees 861,555 95,162 956,717

11,982,184 95,162 12,077,346

  Other sources:
    Sales and service fees 579,112 6,558 585,670
    Facilities revenue 52,210 168,965 221,175
    Investment revenue 189,172 - 189,172
    Other 22,224 25,486 47,710

842,718 201,009 1,043,727

Total revenues 27,514,904 4,064,896 31,579,800

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback revenue (1,702) - (1,702)

Adjusted revenues 27,516,606$ 4,064,896$ 31,581,502$
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating

Fund Fund Funds
Operating expenditures by program:
  Instruction 12,848,964$      -$                      12,848,964$      
  Academic support 3,035,611          -                        3,035,611          
  Student services 2,148,194          -                        2,148,194          
  Public service 563,244             -                        563,244             
  Operations and maintenance -                        3,517,973          3,517,973          
  Institutional support 5,665,745          -                        5,665,745          
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 2,589,367          -                        2,589,367          

Total expenditures 26,851,125        3,517,973          30,369,098        

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback 21,064               -                        21,064               
Transfers, net (1,547,213)        -                        (1,547,213)        

Adjusted expenditures 25,282,848$      3,517,973$        28,800,821$      

By object:
  Salaries 18,364,682$      1,399,430$        19,764,112$      
  Employee benefits 3,214,707          438,568             3,653,275          
  Contractual services 1,020,004          274,664             1,294,668          
  General materials and supplies 1,270,555          238,173             1,508,728          
  Conference and meeting expenses 188,471             5,403                 193,874             
  Fixed charges 45,931               149,542             195,473             
  Utilities 43,626               1,012,193          1,055,819          
  Capital outlay 11,300               -                        11,300               
  Other 2,691,849          -                        2,691,849          

Total expenditures 26,851,125        3,517,973          30,369,098        

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback 21,064               -                        21,064               
Transfers, net (1,547,213)        -                        (1,547,213)        

Adjusted expenditures 25,282,848$      3,517,973$        28,800,821$      

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures

Revenues by source:
  Local government 5,705$                   

  State government:
    ICCB:
      Workforce Development Component 73,841                   
      P-16 Initiative 44,141                   
      Adult Education and Family Literacy 663,689                 
      Early School Leaver 48,073
      State Program Improvement 22,828                   
     Tech Prep Support 8,879                     
    Illinois State Board of Education: 
      Truancy and Alternative Education 254,359                 
      Grow Your Own Grant 21,843                   
      Pre-School for All 17,502                   
      Other 777                        
    Illinois Department of Labor, Displaced Homemakers Program 95,610                   
    Illinois Secretary of State:
      Literacy is for Everyone 65,000                   
      Family Literacy Connections - Kewanee FY06 and FY07 Grants 35,000                   
      Family Literacy Connections - Moline 35,000                   
      Family Literacy Connections - East Moline 35,000
    State Comptroller's Office, Public Broadcasting Grant 146,507                 
    Illinois Board of Higher Education - Innovation Grant, Nursing Improvement, Mentoring Online 17,530
    Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity:
      Digital Divide 37,562                   
      Science Lab Renovation 44,265
    Illinois Student Assistance Center 2,029,970              
    Other 42,199                   

Total state government 3,739,575              

Federal government:
  Department of Education
    Student Aid Programs:
      Federal Work Study (FWS) 158,358                 
      Pell Grant 5,130,486              
      Academic Competitiveness 76,125                   
      Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG) 123,840                 
     Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Program 489,355
     Special Student Services 308,240                 
     Adult Education and Family Literacy, Federal Basic Program 330,145
     Adult Education English Language/Civics 48,209
     Other Department of Education 41,548
  Department of Labor
     EARN and TEAM 126,743                 
     Innovate Now 10,000                   
     Joined by a River/Logistics 95,804                   
     Welding Program 50,000                   

Year ended June 30, 2008

78



Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Revenues by source (Continued):
Federal government (Continued):
  Federal Child and Adult Care Food Program 6,451                     
  Department of Defense 70,153                   
  Small Business Administration 151,276                 
  Housing and Urban Development 209,270
  Other Federal 16,103

Total federal government 7,442,106              

Other sources:
  Investment income 68,577                   
  Gifts from donors for scholarships 271,174                 
  Corporation for Public Broadcasting 872,242                 
  Student Fees 351,705
  Other 367,883                 

Total other 1,931,581              
Total Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues 13,118,967$

Expenditures by program:
  Instruction 681,260$               
  Academic support 1,215,942              
  Student services 1,007,428              
  Public service/continuing education 2,111,698              
  Auxiliary services 38,362                   
  Operations and maintenance 140,007                 
  Institutional support 270,284                 
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 7,740,441              

Total expenditures by program 13,205,422$          

Expenditures by object:
  Salaries 2,634,621$            
  Employee benefits 752,615                 
  Contractual services 960,081                 
  General materials and supplies 536,934                 
  Conference and meeting expenses 116,333                 
  Fixed charges 84,192                   
  Utilities 15,097                   
  Capital outlay 267,386                 
  Other 7,838,163              

Total expenditures by object 13,205,422$          

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 5 - Expenditures by Activity - Current Funds

Instruction 13,530,224$          

Academic support:
  Library center 652,345                 
  Instructional materials center 63,911                   
  Educational materials center 3,943                     
  Academic computing support 841,907                 
  Academic administration and planning 2,506,187              
  Other 183,260                 

Total academic support 4,251,553              

Student services:
  Admissions and records 432,055                 
  Counseling and career guidance 911,295                 
  Financial aid administration 648,774                 
  Social and cultural development 221,010                 
  Other 942,488                 

Total student services 3,155,622              

Public service/continuing education:
  Community education 374,075                 
  Customized training (instructional) 524,476                 
  Community services 604,429                 
  Other 1,171,962              

Total public service/continuing education 2,674,942              

Auxiliary services 3,567,280              

Operations and maintenance of plant:
  Maintenance 931,638                 
  Custodial services 901,574                 
  Grounds 384,783                 
  Campus security 742,125                 
  Utilities 1,034,035              
  Administration 405,950                 

Total operations and maintenance 4,400,105              

Institutional support:
  Executive office 1,093,202              
  Fiscal operations 1,012,565              
  Community relations 1,187,592              
  Administrative support services 904,367                 
  Board of Trustees 24,816                   
  General institution 1,607,358              
  Administrative data processing 146,795                 
  Other 1,211,974              

Total institutional support 7,188,669              

Scholarships, student grants and waivers 10,329,809            
Total current funds expenditures 49,098,204$          

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet to the Uniform Financial Statements

        

Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements 28,504,447$          

Capital assets in the Investment in Plant Fund 29,808,768            
Long-term debt in the General Long Term Debt Fund (15,404,560)           

Fund Balances - All Fund Types 42,908,655$          

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances to the Uniform Financial Statements

        

Change in Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements 8,504,812$            

Additions to buildings and equipment 4,448,153              
Depreciation and loss of disposal of assets (1,458,550)             

Net Effect 2,989,603              

Payment on long-term debt 1,856,435              
Issuance of long-term debt (8,600,000)             

Net Effect (6,743,565)             

SURS revenue provided by state 1,954,642              
SURS expenditure provided by state (1,954,642)             

Net Effect -                             

Change in Fund Balances - All Fund Types 4,750,850$            

Year ended June 30, 2008

Year ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

Assets -$              

Liabilities -$               

Fund balance -                 
-$               

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Business
& Industry

Revenues, state sources 73,841$         

Expenditures:
  Salaries 57,001           
  Employee benefits 15,557           
  Advertising 1,283             

Total expenditures 73,841           

Excess of revenue over (under)
  expenditures -               

Fund balance:
-               
-$              

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Workforce Development Grant Program

Black Hawk College

Workforce Development Grant Program
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008

Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

Workforce Development Grant Program

Operation
of Workforce
Development

General Office Total

Expenditures:
  Salaries, benefits, advertising 73,841$ -$ 73,841$

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

ICCB Compliance Statement

87



Illinois Community College District #503

Assets -$

Liabilities -$                      

Fund balance -                        
-$                      

Revenues, state sources 44,141$                 

Expenditures, other, tuition and fees 44,141                   

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$                      

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

Black Hawk College

P-16 Initiative Grant Program
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

P-16 Initiative Grant Program
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

Public
State Basic Aid Performance Total

Assets
  Cash 31,137$ 14,977$ 10,923$            57,037$
  Due from other funds 357 130 -                   487

Total assets 31,494$ 15,107$ 10,923$            57,524$

Liabilities
  Accounts payable 975$ 3,757$ 2,427$              7,159$
  Accrued salaries 7,313 - -                   7,313
  Due to other funds 23,206 11,350 8,496               43,052

Total liabilities 31,494$ 15,107$ 10,923$            57,524$

Fund balance
  Reserved for encumbrances - - -                   -

Total fund balance -$ -$ -$                  -$

Public
State Basic Aid Performance Total

Revenues, state sources 314,207$ 158,640$ 190,842$          663,689$

Expenditures:
  Current year's grant:
    Instruction 176,709 75,198 -                   251,907
    Social work services - - -                   -
    Guidance services 43,829 36,941 11,972             92,742
    Assessment and testing 5,319 13,377 4,822               23,518
    Transportation - - 4,500               4,500
    Literacy services - - -                   -
    Improvement of Instructional Services 4,378 1,760 3,071               9,209
    General administration 16,704 5,511 -                   22,215
    Workforce coordination 1,720 - -                   1,720
    Data and information services 42,418 14,509 158,162           215,089
    Operation of plant services 23,130 11,344 8,315               42,789

Total expenditures 314,207 158,640 190,842           663,689

Revenues over (under)
expenditures -$ -$ -$                  -$

Fund balance:
-
-$

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program

Black Hawk College

Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

State Basic Audited Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
Instruction 176,709                                            56.24%
(45% Minimum Required)
General Administration 16,704                                              5.32%
(9% Maximum Allowed)

State Public Assistance Audited Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
Instruction 75,198                                              47.40%
(45% Minimum Required)
General Administration 5,511                                                3.47%
(9% Maximum Allowed)

State Performance Audited Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
General Administration -                                                    0.00%
(9% Maximum Allowed)

Black Hawk College

ICCB Compliance Statement for the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Restricted Funds
Expenditure Amounts and Percentages for ICCB Grant Funds Only
Year Ended June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

ICCB State Program Improvement

Assets, cash 22,552$

Liabilities, accounts payable 12,347$                 

Fund balance - Encumbered 10,205                   
22,552$

ICCB State Program Improvement
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 22,828$                 

Expenditures:
    Materials and supplies 3,898                     
    Equipment 8,725                     

             Total expenditures 12,623                   

             Revenues over (under) expenditures 10,205                   

Fund balance:
-                        

10,205$

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

ICCB Tech Prep Support

Assets, cash 924$

Liabilities
  Accounts payable 540$                      
  Accrued payroll 384                        
                 Total liabilities 924                        

Fund balance -                        
924$

ICCB Tech Prep Support
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 8,879$                   

Expenditures:
    Salaries 1,411                     
    Benefits 61                          
    Materials and supplies 3,508                     
    Travel 3,898                     

             Total expenditures 8,879                     

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

Early School Leaver Program

Assets
Cash 420$

Liabilities, accounts payable 420$                      

Fund balance -                        
-$                      

Early School Leaver Program
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 48,073$                 

Expenditures:
  Salaries 33,155                   
  Benefits 13,853                   
  Supplies and Materials 420                        
  Travel 645                        

             Total expenditures 48,073                   

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$                      

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008
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Illinois Community College District #503

ADA Access for All

Assets -$

Liabilities -$                      

Fund balance -                        
-$

ADA Access for All
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 23,542$                 

Expenditures:
  Contractual Services 23,542                   

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2007
  Ending, June 30, 2008

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Note to Financial Statements -Grant Programs 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General: 

 The accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the Workforce 
Development,  P-16 Initiative Grant,  Adult Education and Family Literacy, ICCB State Program 
Improvement, Early School Leaver Program, ICCB Tech Prep Support, and ADA Access For All Grants.  
The transactions for the first six grants have been accounted for in the Restricted Purposes Fund.  The 
transactions for the ADA Access For All has been accounted for in the Operations & Maintenance 
Restricted Fund. 

Basis of Accounting: 

 The statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting as defined in the 
Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management Manual.  Expenditures include all accounts 
payable representing liabilities for good and services actually received as of June 30, 2008.  Funds 
obligated for goods and services prior to June 30, but for which the goods and services are received 
prior to August 31, are recorded as encumbrances.  Unexpended funds are reflected as a reduction to 
fund balance and a liability due to the Illinois Community College Board by October 15, 2008. 

Capital Assets: 

 Capital asset purchases are recorded as capital outlay expenditures and are not capitalized. 

Encumbrances: 

 Payments of prior year’s encumbrances for good received prior to August 31, are reflected as 
expenditures during the current fiscal year. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Background Information on State Grant Activity 

Unrestricted Grants

 Base Operating Grants:  General operating funds provided to colleges upon credit enrollment with a 
small portion of the allocation based upon gross square footage of space at the College. 

 Small College Grants:  Funds provided to colleges with full-time equivalent enrollments of less than 
2,500 students.  Intended to help small colleges pay for some of the “fixed costs” of operating a smaller 
institution.

 Equalization Grants:  Grants provided to institutions with less than the statewide average local tax 
dollars available per full-time equivalent student. 

Restricted Grants/Special Initiatives

Workforce Development Grant - Business/Industry Services – Provides funding for a 
business/industry center at every college to provide a variety of employment training and business 
services outside of the classroom. 

P-16 Initiative Grants – Grant funding is intended to allow community colleges to address the need to 
strengthen student preparation within the P-16 education spectrum by 1) expanding their service to 
high school students desiring to take college-level classes prior to receiving their high school diploma 
to accelerate their college coursework (formerly know as the Accelerated College Enrollment Grant) 
and 2) implementing and/or expanding programs and services that relate to teacher preparation 
(certification) and professional development (recertification).  The intent is to allow colleges to enhance 
or expand current activities. 

Career and Technical Education – Program Improvement Grants – Grant funding recognizes that 
keeping career and technical programs current and reflective of the highest quality practices in the 
workplace is necessary to prepare students to be successful in their chosen careers and to provide 
employers with the well-trained workforce they require.  The grant funds are dedicated to enhancing 
instruction and academic support activities to strengthen and improve career and technical programs 
and services. 

Early School Leaver - Provides funding for high school dropouts between the ages of 16 and 21 who 
want to complete the secondary level of education and participate in work-site learning experiences 
related to career choices.  Only those youth who demonstrate a willingness to meet both goals and 
who are able to benefit from such a program are selected. 

ADA Access for All – Provides funding to allow for increased accessibility for students, staff, and 
faculty and to help bring the College into compliance with the Illinois Accessibility Code and the 
Environmental Barriers Act. 

Student Success Grants -Grant funding is intended to provide needed supplemental services to 
assist students in developing the academic skills necessary to remedy or correct educational 
deficiencies to allow the attainment of college educational goals. The students to be served by the 
Student Success Grant are those students with social, economic, physical, or developmental 
disabilities, and/or academic deficiencies that make it difficult for such a student to adapt to a college 
environment. Colleges will designate which of their students are eligible for services through the 
Student Success Grant as determined by college assessment procedures and instruments selected by 
the colleges. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Background Information on State Grant Activity 

Statewide Initiatives

 Special Incentive Grants:  A new request to provide flexible funding for unique initiatives needed in the 
community college system.  The grants will be awarded on a Request for Proposal basis and will focus 
on higher education priorities such as accessibility, affordability, productivity, partnerships, quality, and 
responsiveness.  In addition, a significant proportion of the dollars available will focus on improving the 
available of qualified information technology employees in the State of Illinois. 

 Lincoln’s Challenge Grants:  Funding for a military style boot camp for at-risk teenagers who have not 
completed high school.  After successfully completing the program, students are eligible to receive a 
scholarship to attend a community college. 

 Other Grants:  These other grants are additional contractual grants provided for special or specific 
system-related initiatives.  These grants are supported by signed contracts between the College and 
the State of Illinois.  A brief description of each grant should be included in this section.  A description 
of the grants supported by grant agreements may be found in the appendix of the grant agreement 
governing these grants. 

Restricted Adult Education Grants/State

 State Basic:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to establish special 
classes for the instruction of persons of age 21 and over or persons under the age of 21 and not 
otherwise in attendance in public school for the purpose of providing adults in the community, and 
other instruction as may be necessary to increase their qualifications for employment or other means 
of self-support and their ability to meet their responsibilities as citizens including courses of instruction 
regularly accepted for graduation from elementary or high schools and for Americanization and 
General Education Development Review classes.  Included in this grant are funds for support services, 
such as student transportation and childcare facilities or provision. 

 Public Assistance:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to pay for any 
fees, books, and materials incurred in the program for students who are identified as recipients of 
public assistance. 

 Performance:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers based on performance 
outcomes. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for Certain State Grants Summary 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Comment - We noted instances where the College was unable to locate midterm reports so an accurate 
count of students in attendance at midterm was not available. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs for Certain State Grants 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Comment - We noted instances where the College was unable to locate midterm reports so an accurate 
count of students in attendance at midterm was not available. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Student Residency Verification 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SUMMARY OF STUDENT RESIDENCY VERIFICATION PROCESS 

Residence is defined in the College catalog as the place where the student lives and which is the student’s 
true home. Residency is determined at the time of application for admission. Students who change their 
residency after applying must verify their residency. Proof of residency is verified by any of the following: 

1. An Illinois driver’s license and/or vehicle registration 

2. A voter registration card 

3. Payment of property taxes in the Black Hawk College District #503 

4. Full-time employment in Black Hawk College District #503 

5. Other documents that are not self serving 

The residency of the student determines tuition rates assessed.  Tuition rates assessed for students 
considered in-district are lower than tuition rates for those students who are considered out-of-district.   

Copies of the proof and certification of residency forms are kept on file and residency compliance is 
periodically audited by the Office of Institutional Planning and Effectiveness.  It is the student’s responsibility 
to provide proof of residency and maintain compliance with the residency requirements of the College. 
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Illinois Community College District #503

Summary of Assessed Valuations

Equalized
Assessed

Tax Levy Year Valuation

2007 3,229,766,461$
2006 3,071,201,593
2005 2,951,380,890

Black Hawk College

Most Recent Three Years
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

                            Pass-Through 
                         Federal                Entity 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through                         CFDA             Identifying              Federal 
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title                          Number             Number            Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education: 
  Direct programs: 
 Student financial aid – cluster: 
  Federal PELL Grant Program 84.063  $5,130,486 
  Federal Academic Competitiveness Grant 84.063  76,125 
  Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007  123,840 
  Federal Family Education Loans 84.032  2,296,888
  Federal Work-Study Program 84.033      158,358

   Total student financial aid   7,785,697

 TRIO-Student Support Services (01) 84.042           P042A060709     43,286 
 TRIO-Student Support Services (02) 84.042           P042A060709     264,954 

Total direct programs $8,093,937

  Pass-through programs from: 
  Adult Education State Grant Program (FY08 Federal Basic) 84.002A 2008-50301 330,146 
  Adult Education State Grant Program (EL Civics) 84.002A 2008-50301 48,209 
  Vocational Education (FY07 Perkins) 84.048 CTE50307 9,118 
  Vocational Education (FY08 Perkins) 84.048 CTE50308 452,704
  Vocational Education (FY07 Perkins Tech Prep Support) 84.048 TPS50307 275 
  Vocational Education (Perkins Post Secondary Performance) 84.048 CTEL08503 2,000 
  Vocational Education (Perkins Continuous Quality Improv.) 84.048 CTEL08503        9,991 
  Vocational Education (Perkins Innovation Grant/Strand III) 84.048 CTEL08503        7,999 
  Vocational Education (BHC Sauk CTE Reg. Collaboration) 84.048 RC5-503          3,768

Total pass-through programs from 
     Illinois Community College Board      864,210

   IL Center for Specialized Prof. Support - Illinois State University: 
  Vocational Education (Perkins New Look Project) 84.048 RSP#06D300.04          3,500

   Total U.S. Department of Education $8,961,647

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:              14.246       B-00-SP-IL-0125 $209,270 

U.S. Veterans’ Administration 16,103 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

                      Pass-Through 
                          Federal              Entity 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through                                                     CFDA           Identifying         Federal 
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title                          Number            Number          Expenditures

U.S Department of Defense 
   Pass-through programs from: 
  Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, 
    Procurement Technical Assistance Center 12.002 06-601119 16,066 
    Procurement Technical Assistance Center 12.002 07-611119       54,087

70,153 

  Small Business Administration: 
 Pass-through programs from: 
  Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, 
    Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 07-181119 80,000 

  Illinois Department of Commerce and Community Affairs, 
    Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 08-561119       71,276
        151,276

  U.S. Department of Labor: 
 Pass-through programs from: 
  State of Illinois Department of Employment 
    WIA – Hire Expectations and Employment Advancement 17.262 N/A 126,744 
               WIA – Innovate Now 17.258 IN50307 2,700 
               WIA – Innovate Now 17.259 IN50307 2,900 
               WIA – Innovate Now 17.260 IN50307 4,400 
    WIA – Federal Workforce Grant - Welding 17.267 05-113093 50,000 

  Eastern Iowa Community College District 
    WIA – Joined by a River: Logistics Programming in the QC 17.269 CB-15932-07-60-1-A-19        95,804

282,548 

U.S. Department of Agriculture: 
 Pass-through program from: 
  Illinois State Board of Education Child & Adult Food Program 10.558 2007-4226-49-081- 

 5030-51-00 1,469 
  Illinois State Board of Education Child & Adult Food Program 10.558 2008-4226-49-081- 

5030-51-00           4,982
                  6,451

Total expenditures of federal awards   $9,697,448

See Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Note 1) Basis of Presentation

 The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity 
of Black Hawk College and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in 
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
June 30, 2008 

    
   Corrective Action or 
  Comment   Other Explanation                              

2008 - 1 We noted instances where the College was 
unable to locate midterm reports so an 
accurate count of students in attendance at 
midterm was not available. 

A process to account for all mid-term 
rosters has been implemented as of 
July 1, 2008. 

2008 - 2 College personnel have the ability to delete 
transactions within their software system. 

A process has been implemented to 
record all data deleted from the system 
until the ability for users to delete data 
can be restricted.  The College is 
currently reviewing the action 
necessary to limit the ability of users to 
delete data from the system. 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008

I. Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements: 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

 * Material weakness identified? Yes  X No
 * Significant deficiency identified that is not
  considered to be a material weakness X Yes  No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X 

! Material weakness identified? Yes

No

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

X 
! Significant deficiency identified that is

No

  not considered to be a material weakness  Yes X None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

! Any audit findings disclosed that are required

Unqualified

  to be reported in accordance with Section
  510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program

84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant
84.032 Federal Family Education Loans
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program
84.063 Federal PELL Grant Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? X Yes  No
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ending June 30, 2008

II. Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statement Audit as Required to be Reported in 
Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

A.

The audit disclosed no matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its 
operations that are considered to be material weaknesses.

B.

Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control

A.

Compliance Findings

  The audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are material to the basic financial 
statements of Black Hawk College as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008. 

III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

None

B.

Significant Deficiencies in Administering Federal Awards

Compliance Findings

  None
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Corrective Action Plan 
Year Ending June 30, 2008 

 N/A 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
June 30, 2008 

    
  Corrective Action or 

Comment Status Other Explanation

 None 
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